
NOTICE 
PUBLIC MEETING OF THE  

PIMA COUNTY ANIMAL CARE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
January 21, 2016 – 5:30 p.m. 
Pima Animal Care Center  

4000 N Silverbell Road  
    Admin Building 
Tucson, Arizona 

(520) 724-7729 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Functions of the Committee 

1. Serve in an advisory capacity to the Board, and to the Manager of the Pima Animal Care Center (PACC); and 
2. Review and evaluate the operations of the Center to make recommendations in writing to the Board for the formulation of guidelines to assure that: 

A.  The Center's operations are conducted in the best interest of the public health and safety; and 
B.  The Center keeps pace with the most modern practices and procedures of animal care and welfare; and 

3. Review complaints from the public concerning policies of the Center and make recommendations for resolution to the proper authority. 
 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order 

• Roll Call 
• Establishment of Quorum and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Review and Adoption of Minutes: 
• Adoption of December 17, 2015 meeting minutes 

3. Animal Welfare and Dangerous Animal Cases for December 2015 and Recent Holds Snapshot 
4. Call to the Audience 
5. Management Report 
6. Old Business 

• Use of Comment Sheet for Welfare Reviews 
7. New Business 

• Shortening Lengthy Animal Holds 
• Proposed Ordinance Regarding Pima County Code 6.04.100 Regarding Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee  
• Pima Animal Care Center Reorganization 
• Animal Care Center Main Phone Tree Message 

8. Donations: A total of $81,966.33 in donations was received during the month of December. 
9. Complaints and Commendations: There were no complaints and two commendations received by staff during December.   

10. Call to the Audience 
11. Announcements, Schedules and Proposed Agenda Items 
12. Next Meeting – February 18, 2016 
13 Adjournment 
 
Copies of this agenda are available upon request at the Pima County Health Department, 3950 S. Country Club Road, by calling 724-7729 or 
at www.pima.gov/animalcare.  The Committee may discuss and take action on any item on the agenda.  At the conclusion of an open call to the public 
Committee members may only respond to criticism made; ask staff to review the matter raised; or ask to include the matter on a future agenda. 
 
Should you require ADA accommodations, please contact the Pima County Health Department at 724-7729 five (5) days prior to the meeting. 

http://www.pima.gov/animalcare


Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
4000 N Silverbell Road 
Tucson, Arizona 85745 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Ms. Emptage called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm 
 
• Attendance 
 
Present: 
Tamara Barrick, Pima Paws for Life 
Nancy Emptage, Chair, Animal Welfare Coalition  
Pat Hubbard, Humane Society of Southern Arizona 
Pat Jacobs, Tucson Kennel Club 
Sophia Kaluzniacki, DVM, SPCA of AZ, Inc 
Derek Marshall, Public Education 
Helen Mendelsohn, Disabled Community 
Jack Neuman, Vice-Chair, PACC Volunteers 
Erin O'Donnell, DVM, Southern AZ Veterinary Medical Association 
Jane Schwerin, People for Animals in the Prevention of Cruelty and Neglect 
Gail Smith, MD, Board of Health 
Marcy Flanagan, Health Department Deputy Director, Ex-Offico 
 
Absent:  
None 
 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Adoption of the Minutes  
 
• Adoption of the November 19, 2015 Meeting Minutes 
 
Ms. Schwerin referred to item ten and said she did not use the word “bond” as written in the draft 
minutes.  She wants the County Attorney to be part of the discussion on animals being held at PACC 
for a long time. 
 
The motion was made and seconded (Hubbard/Smith) that the November 19, 2015 meeting minutes 
be adopted with Ms. Schwerin’s correction.  The motion carried (10-0); (Ms. Mendelsohn not present 
yet). 
 

3. Animal Welfare and Dangerous Animal Cases August through November 2015 and Recent Holds 
Snapshot 
 
Ms. Emptage referred to September’s welfare case one, which included a comment stating the dog 
involved was adopted from PACC back in January by a first time pet owner.  The dog had to be 
euthanized.  Ms. Emptage stressed that being a first time pet owner is no excuse for allowing a dog to 
deteriorate to the point of needing euthanasia.   
 

Draft 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 

Ms. Schwerin referred to August’s welfare case six and said it was notable due to the extreme cruelty 
and because the dog was adopted from PACC.  She said she finds it hard to believe the officer actually 
reviewed animal welfare requirements and laws with the owner as noted in the report and suggested 
that such wording is automatically placed in these reports. 
 
Ms. Schwerin referred to August’s welfare case seven, in which 69 animals were impounded, but one 
or two cats were left behind.  She wanted to know if PACC staff would go back and check on the one 
or two cats. 
 
Ms. Schwerin referred to September’s welfare case one, said the dog involved was euthanized and 
was adopted from PACC.  The report states the dog was impounded at no charge to the owner, so she 
asked why that comment was made and if they every charge owners for impounding.  Supervisor 
Tenkate said the owner was cited and put on a do not adopt list, and clarified that PACC does not 
charge for welfare impounds just pick-ups.  Ms. Schwerin continued that adopters should be carefully 
screened and said she is opposed to free adoptions.  Mr. Neuman asked what repercussions there are 
for those who abuse animals.  Supervisor Tenkate said animals can be impounded and owners can be 
cited; she added rechecks can be done if animals are left with the owner.  She continued that license 
and vaccination records are verified and citations are issued for any failure to comply with these 
requirements. 
 
Discussion turned to October’s welfare case two which included a Bichon Frise on a tie-out, but also 
included a Chihuahua in a crate.  The crate also contained some waste.  The Bichon Frise was 
impounded, but the Chihuahua was left.  Some Committee members voiced questions and concerns 
about the Chihuahua.  Supervisor Tenkate said the crate was large; there was one to two days of waste 
present; and the dog had clean water and ventilation.  There was concern about the tarp over the cage.  
Mr. Neuman suggested the tarp might have been employed to hide the dog; however, Mr. Jacobs said 
he has used a tarp to provide shade.  There was also concern about the waste.  Supervisor Tenkate said 
in the County waste has to be removed every 72 hours.  In the judgment of the officer who handled 
the case, conditions for the Chihuahua were adequate according to the legal standards; however, a dog 
on a tie-out is considered in distress, which is why the Bichon Frise was impounded.  Mr. Jacobs said 
he would like the Committee to review the aforementioned 72-hour waste standard.  Ms. Schwerin 
voiced that she is against keeping animals in cages or crates; said she has been concerned about 
people doing so for 20 years; and called animals being confined in a cage or crate extreme cruelty.  
However, Ms. Hubbard and Mr. Jacobs said they crate their animals; and Mr. Jacobs said he would 
like the topic of crating placed on the agenda for discussion.  Ms. Hubbard said the issue of crating 
has been discussed by the Committee in the past.  Supervisor Tenkate reported that at a recheck the 
Chihuahua was in the house and the Bichon Frise was in a fenced area. 
 
Ms. Schwerin referred to October’s welfare case seven; said the owner cannot afford veterinary care; 
and asserted PACC is adopting out animals to too many owners who cannot afford veterinary care.   
Mr. Jacobs asked if the animal in this particular case was adopted from PACC and the answer was no.  
Ms. Schwerin acknowledged this case doesn’t involve an animal from PACC, but said several do.  
 
Ms. Schwerin referred to November’s welfare case three, which involved two emaciated dogs, and 
asked what is happening with the case.  Enforcement Manager Jose Chavez said the owner paid the 
bond and a hearing is pending.  Ms. Schwerin said she would like to attend the hearing and ask to be 
notified when it is scheduled. 
 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 

Ms. Schwerin referred to November’s welfare case four, which involved a matted dog relinquished for 
euthanasia.  The report states the officer provided the owner information on low/no cost veterinarian 
care.  Ms. Schwerin asserted that low/no cost veterinarian care is not as it was presented by the officer 
and requested a copy of the low/no cost veterinarian information PACC provides.  Ms. Emptage 
requested everyone get a copy.  Ms. Schwerin said the dog is blind in one eye, has seizures and 
tremors and she questioned how humane it is to keep the dog alive as PACC has been doing.  She also 
asked about the dates on this case, which jump from September 3 to November 29.  Supervisor 
Tenkate said the owner dropped off the dog and left, and then it took until November 29 to contact 
and cite the owner.  Supervisor Tenkate went over some of the medical history provided.  Ms. 
Emptage stated she assumed the dog in this case would be a special needs adoption and asked if the 
medical history goes with the dog when it is adopted; Supervisor Tenkate said it does. 
 
Ms. Emptage brought up that a couple of the dangerous dog cases involved a minor in charge of a pit 
bull the minor could not control.  Mr. Jacobs suggested this topic could be something the Committee 
would want to look into.  She asked about accountability in such cases.  Supervisor Tenkate said the 
adult owner is held responsible.  Mr. Jacobs asked if in these cases juveniles are cited into juvenile 
court, and Supervisor Tenkate said they are not.   
 
Ms. Emptage mentioned an English bulldog reportedly was given away after it bit someone and was 
taken to Mexico where the owner vaccinated the dog himself.  She asked how the dog can be licensed 
without proof of vaccination.  Supervisor Tenkate said if the licensing staff licensed the dog then the 
necessary documentation had to be shown. 
 

4. Call to the Audience  
 
There were no speakers from the audience.  
 

5. Management Report 
 
Ms. Flanagan said after the last meeting there were questions from volunteers about the monthly 
statistical report that has been regularly provided.  The report has for a long time been generated 
through Kim Janes (former ex-offico).  Currently it is unknown how the numbers are systematically 
generated or pulled, so Ms. Flanagan will be working with Finance to build a new monthly report. 
 
Ms. Flanagan reported that PACC’s Volunteer Coordinator has moved on to other employment; the 
position has been advertised and there is already a list of quality applicants. 
 
Ms. Flanagan advised the Committee that a representative from the County Attorney’s Office was not 
available for the December meeting, but can come for the January meeting to discuss lengthy animal 
holds.  Ms. Schwerin pointed out that Mr. Jacobs had requested a judge or court administrator be 
invited to the discussion on lengthy animal holds.  Ms. Flanagan said she talked to the County 
Attorney about that request and was told it is highly unlikely either would attend a Committee 
meeting; however, the Committee can make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors and the 
Board may forward those recommendations to the court. 
 

6. Old Business 
 
• Procedures Related to Agenda Items 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 8 
 
 

Ms. Emptage stated that any member can put an item on the agenda and said this item does not need 
to be on the agenda going forward.  
 

7. New Business 
 
• Proposed Ordinance Amending Pima County Code 6.04.070 Related to Licensing Fees 
 
Ms. Emptage pointed out licensing fees have been a topic of discussion at recent meetings.  A 
proposed ordinance was provided (included in the packet and record) by staff for consideration.  Ms. 
Emptage continued that some of the recent discussion included not giving a break for unaltered 
animals and that she has been told by knowledgeable people in the service industry, service animals 
should be altered to prevent distraction.  Ms. Mendelsohn pointed out there could be an exception if a 
veterinarian identifies a medical problem, such as an animal having trouble with anesthesia, but added 
a very low percentage are in this category.  Dr. Smith pointed out item five in the proposed ordinance 
addresses dogs that cannot be altered for health reasons.  Ms. Emptage requested item seven in the 
ordinance include the word “altered.”  Through general discussion it was also commented that only 
dogs are service animals and the licensing provision only applies to dogs, therefore it was suggested 
the word “animal” be replaced with the word “dog” in item seven.  
 
Ms. Schwerin stated she is opposed to item five, saying she has known of veterinarians who have 
given out the certificate (saying the dog cannot be altered) when the dog could have been altered.  The 
motion was made and seconded (Schwerin/Kaluzniacki) that the Committee recommend striking item 
five.  Discussion followed.  Dr. Kaluzniacki asserted that the overwhelming majority of veterinarians 
are honest and that she does not think item five should be removed.  There was some discussion on 
whether the certification in item five requires a reason be stated.  Dr. O'Donnell added she knows 
veterinarians who will not anesthetize dogs over ten years of age, which she does not consider a valid 
reason to not alter a dog.  The motion failed (2-9), with Ms. Emptage and Ms. Schwerin as the two 
votes for the motion.  After the vote Mr. Jacobs stated he is still opposed to item four in the proposed 
ordinance. 
 
The motion was made and seconded (Neuman/Smith) that the Committee supports the proposed 
ordinance with the aforementioned edits, adding the word “altered” and changing “animal” to “dog” 
in item seven.  Ms. Schwerin stated she had a change she wants in the proposed ordinance and 
provided her proposed new wording for 6.04.050 in the proposed ordinance (included in the record).   
She read her proposed language.  She added that Mr. Janes suggested her language be sent to the 
County Attorney.  The motion was made and seconded (Schwerin/Kaluzniacki) to amend the motion 
on the floor, Mr. Neuman’s motion, to include Ms. Schwerin’s additional language.  Mr. Jacobs asked 
if the County Attorney’s Office reviewed and approved of the ordinance language as presented by 
staff, to which Ms. Flanagan replied they had.  Mr. Neuman asserted that when the proposed 
ordinance language states “animal care enforcement officers are authorized to enforce….” it does not 
say so to the exclusion of any other entity doing so.  Ms. Schwerin asserted the proposed ordinance 
language is incomplete and that it is desirable to have the “whole story” in one place which her 
proposed language accomplishes.  A vote was taken on Ms. Schwerin’s motion; the motion failed (1-
9), with Ms. Schwerin as the one vote for her motion and Ms. Emptage abstaining.  A vote was then 
taken on Mr. Neuman’s motion; the motion carried (8-3), with Ms. Emptage, Mr. Jacobs and Ms. 
Schwerin voting against.  The motion was made and seconded (Kaluzniacki/Smith) to submit Ms. 
Schwerin’s proposed language to the County Attorney for review and possible inclusion in the 
proposed ordinance.  The motion carried (10-1); Mr. Jacobs voted against the motion. 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 

• Proposed Ordinance Amending Pima County Code 6.04.100 Related to the Pima County Animal 
Care Advisory Committee 

 
Ms. Flanagan said the proposed ordinance, (included in the packet and record), which deals with the 
composition of the Animal Care Advisory Committee, was produced by the County Attorney’s 
working with Deputy County Administrator Jan Lesher, who had input from the Board of Supervisors.  
She continued that the proposed new composition includes appointees from the Board of Supervisors 
similar to other public bodies such as the Board of Health.  If adopted, the ordinance will require the 
Committee’s by-laws be updated.  Ms. Flanagan requested the Committee’s support of the ordinance 
and/or comments.  Ms. Mendelsohn asked if the proposal is removing all the current positions.  Ms. 
Flanagan answered that the current members would stay put until their scheduled term expiration, 
which would include a few in June of 2016, a few in June of 2016, and so on.  However, the 
Committee seat origins as currently defined in 6.04.100 would be redefined, largely eliminating 
current Committee seat origins, which are mostly associated with organizations.  Dr. Smith asked why 
not have people on the Committee from the animal welfare community.  Ms. Flanagan answered that 
the Board would pick individuals from their districts with animal welfare experience and knowledge, 
just like they pick members for the Board of Health with health related backgrounds, not random 
inexperienced individuals.  Dr. Smith suggested adding Board of Supervisors appointees in addition to 
leaving the current membership in place, emphasizing the current members live and breathe animal 
welfare and adding she couldn’t imagine the Committee without the people who care for animals so 
much.  Ms. Emptage voiced concern with the proposed jurisdictional representative, saying programs 
that have made great strides will lose funding as donations go to offset jurisdictional administrative 
costs instead.  Ms. Flanagan replied that the Committee is advisory and as such can make 
recommendations, but the Board of Supervisors has the decision making authority concerning the use 
of funding, not the Committee.  Ms. Hubbard said that committees need diversity.   
 
Health Department Director Francisco García provided background information on the proposed 
ordinance to give context.  The County Attorney’s Office was reviewing all boards, commissions and 
committees (BCCs) with an eye for how representative they are of the jurisdictions, their uniformity 
and accountability.  The County Attorney’s Office determined the original ordinance as crafted 
probably doesn’t make sense any more in that many of the entities have changed.  As a result the 
County Attorney’s Office, Ms. Lesher and Dr. García started working on what the Committee should 
look like.  Their first priority was to preserve the historical knowledge built within the Committee, 
which is why the current membership stays in place until their scheduled term expiration.  Secondarily 
the intent is to bring some accountability to the districts members serve as is the case with other 
BCCs.  Part of the process for the Department is to submit to the individual Supervisors a list of 
current Committee members who reside in their districts to aid in their decision making process.  Dr. 
García asserted that it is not politically likely for any new Committee composition to not include 
representation connected with major animal welfare organizations.  He continued that the new 
structure is also intended to bring in new faces with different skill sets.   
 
If passed, once the transition is completed the proposed ordinance’s Committee composition would 
include 11 representatives as follows:  
• one appointed by the Southern Arizona Veterinary Medical Association;  
• one appointed by the Pima Animal Care Center Partners, (which is comprised of one representative 

of each of the jurisdictions that have an intergovernmental agreement with Pima County);  
• one appointed by Friends of Pima Animal Care Center, (the nonprofit fundraising arm of PACC); 
• one appointed by the registered volunteers of the Pima Animal Care Center 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 

• one appointed by each member of the Board of Supervisors (five total); 
• one appointed by the County Administrator; 
• one staff member appointed by the County Administrator. 
 
Ms. Hubbard voiced her support and said change is good.  The motion was made and seconded 
(Hubbard/Neuman) that the Committee support the proposed ordinance.  Mr. Jacobs expressed he 
didn’t have enough time to digest the ordinance and felt the public needed more notice to provide 
input.  It was pointed out the ordinance was posted on the Board of Supervisors’s website and the 
Advisory Committee’s website.  Dr. Smith made an amended motion for the Committee to support 
adding the additional positions from the ordinance, but keep the existing Committee seats.  Mr. Jacobs 
seconded her motion.  Ms. Schwerin asserted County Administrator Huckelberry has made some 
terrible suggestions in the past, citing a suggested drop-off fee as an example.  She continued by 
saying she is opposed to some of the additional positions.  Ms. Hubbard rebutted Ms. Schwerin’s 
statement, saying many organizations have intake fees.  Mr. Jacobs stated he interprets the ordinance 
as an indication the animal community will need to be politically aware, politically astute and forceful 
in position in a political way to the Board of Supervisors and County administration. 
 
A vote was taken on Dr. Smith’s amended motion.  The motion failed (1-4).  Dr. Smith voted for the 
motion; Ms. Schwerin, Ms. Hubbard, Mr. Jacobs and Dr. O'Donnell voted against the motion; and Mr.  
Marshall, Dr. Kaluzniacki, Ms. Barrick, Ms. Mendelsohn, Ms. Emptage and Mr. Neuman abstained 
from the vote.  
 
A vote was taken on the original motion from Ms. Hubbard. The motion failed (2-4).  Ms. Hubbard 
and Mr. Neuman voted for the motion; Dr. Smith, Ms. Schwerin, Mr. Jacobs and Ms. Mendelsohn 
voted against the motion; and Dr. O'Donnell, Dr. Kaluzniacki, Ms. Emptage, Mr.  Marshall and Ms. 
Barrick abstained from the vote. 
 
The motion was made and seconded (Jacobs/Mendelsohn) that the Committee thank the Board of 
Supervisors for the opportunity to discuss this matter (the proposed ordinance on the Committee’s 
composition).   The motion carried (9-1) Ms. Schwerin voted against and Mr. Marshall abstained. 
  
• Use of Pima Animal Care Center Donations and Bequests 
 
Dr. García, Health Department Director, introduced Development Director Karen Hollish who shared 
a PowerPoint presentation regarding PACC’s Development Program.  The Development Program 
raises much needed funds.  PACC’s annual budget is roughly $8.8 million; however, comparing 
PACC to comparable shelters the budget should be around $13 million.  Ms. Hollish is working to 
create a culture of philanthropy; market PACC’s successes; and build a positive public image.  In the 
20 months she has been with PACC $1.4 million in cash has been raised for PACC and its partners.  
Adding planned gifts raises that amount to $2.9 million.  Additionally $700,000 in in-kind donations 
has been raised during the same time frame.  Funds are raised through direct mail appeals, grant 
writing, on-line campaigns, matching campaigns, planned and major gifts, and special events. 
Currently a goal of $600,000 in donations is built into the budget.  These funds are necessary to 
underwrite PACC’s medical program.  Ms. Hollish’s second goal is to build a robust independent non-
profit partner for PACC.  Currently Friends of Pima Animal Care Center is a project fund under the 
Community Foundation for Southern Arizona, but work is underway to secure independent 501c3 
status.  Donations to Friends of Pima Animal Care Center can be used more flexibly.  
 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 

Dr. García emphasized that PACC wants to do way more than the legal minimum mandates, but has 
limited resources, which is why fund development is so important.  He also pointed out that spending 
authority is part of the budget requirements and funds donated cannot be spent unless spending 
authority has been granted, which is why the $600,000 goal is expressed in the budget.  
 
Dr. García highlighted that animal welfare is a passionate cause for many people who are willing to 
put their money where their hearts are, even in giving to government which is extremely rare.  He 
contrasted PACC with the main, non-PACC, Health Department which would love to do many 
wonderful but un-mandated things to promote health, but the passion and associated donations to 
underwrite these pursuits doesn’t flow like it does for animal welfare.  Recently PACC has been 
named as beneficiary of two very generous gifts from two women, Ella Jane Burson and Marilynn 
Rasmussen.  These gifts total approximately $1.3 million.  The Department wants to honor the wishes 
of the donors and has developed an investment plan that covers four areas.  Roughly $500,000 is to be 
set aside to continue the Community Cat Program (trap/neuter/release) which currently is funded 
through a grant contract which expires in fiscal year 2017/2018.  Secondly $296,000 is to be used to 
address animal behavioral health issues.  Thirdly $189,000 is to be used for owner / adopter support to 
help pet owners succeed as owners.  This amount is tied to approximately $149,000 from PetSmart 
Charities.  And the last investment is $110,000 to build PACC’s capacity for development / enhance 
the development program.  Dr. García said the Department wants to be a good steward of the money 
and all investments are non-mandated.  In contrast to the Department’s investment plan, the 
jurisdictions want the gifts to be used to offset their bill(s).  Dr. García asked for the Committee’s 
opinion; does the Committee support the Burson and Rasmussen bequests investment plan or does it 
support the position expressed by the jurisdictions? 
 
Mr. Jacobs asked about donations in excess of the $600,000 budgeted amount, referring to the $1.4 
million figure mentioned by Ms. Hollish.  Dr. García replied that agency donations such as from 
PetSmart are treated as contracts.  The funds are used for the specific purpose(s) expressed in the 
contract, not general operations.  Mr. Jacobs also asked how gifts can be given to ensure they are not 
used to support the regular budget.  Dr. García replied the simplest way is to give to Friends of PACC; 
and they have a list of priorities they support.  The second way is to have your own foundation and 
through the foundation enter into an agreement with PACC to provide a specified service or services. 
 
The motion was made and seconded (Smith/Neuman) that the Committee send a letter to the Board of 
Supervisors in support of the Burson and Rasmussen bequest investment plan as presented.  Prior to 
the vote Mr. Neuman stated the community’s support for general animal welfare and PACC is 
obvious as demonstrated by its strong support for the new animal care center bond proposal which 
passed while all other recent bond proposal failed, and asked when can it be expected that PACC will 
be properly funded to a necessary level.  Dr. García replied he will continue to advocate for resourcing 
PACC, but he doesn’t anticipate any big changes in the PACC budget, but rather expects a slow and 
steady climb.  A vote was taken on Dr. Smith’s motion; the motion carried 8-0, with Ms. Schwerin 
abstaining from the vote.  Two Committee members had already left the meeting prior to the vote. 
 
• Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee By-Laws 
 
There was no discussion on this agenda item. 

 
• Proposal to have Comment Sheet for Welfare and Dangerous Dog Reviews 

 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
December 17, 2015 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 

Ms. Emptage suggested a new method for the Committee to review and comment on welfare cases.  
She generated a single page with four sections or windows.  The first had a report snapshot; the 
second contained the Animal Care Officer summary comments; the third contained the officer’s 
written case report; and the bottom section provided space for comments from a Committee member.  
She suggested that every month Mr. Schlueter (Committee Coordinator) generate these four-section 
pages for each of the reported welfare cases (usually ten).  She continued that the full welfare case 
documentation, as it has been, plus this extra page for each case could be provided to members in an 
email unless Committee members request paper copies.  Then members can record any comments and 
return the one page to Mr. Schlueter, who will compile the comments and provide them in the meeting 
packets for all members to read.  Her hope is that the comments will be concise and that the 
Committee will be able to go through these cases quicker during the meetings.  There was some 
concern about there being enough time to get the welfare cases to the Committee; have the members 
review them and comment; send the comments back to Mr. Schlueter; and get everything back out to 
the Committee.  Mr. Jacobs commented he is more concerned about specificity than timeliness.  
Generally, comments were positive regarding Ms. Emptage’s proposal.  Through discussion it was 
touched on that members don’t have to comment on all welfare cases.  Ms. Flanagan suggested the 
proposal be tried out for the next meeting and staff will track how much time it takes.  Ms. Emptage 
took a vote on trying her suggestion and it was 11-0 in favor.  Mr. Jacobs later added that the 
comments page should include requests, suggested actions and/or outcomes, not just comments. 
 
• Animal Care Center Main Phone Tree Message 

 
There was no discussion on this item. 
 

8. A total of 1,131 individuals gave $26,810.12 in donations during the month of November. 
 
There was no discussion on this agenda item 
 

9. Complaints and Commendations: There were no complaints and commendations received by staff 
during November. 
 
There was no discussion on this agenda item. 
 

10. Call to the Audience 
 
There were no speakers from the audience. 
 

11. Announcements, Schedules and Proposed Agenda Items 
 
There was no discussion on this agenda item. 
 

12. Next Meeting – January 21, 2016 
 

The next meeting will be at PACC. 
 
13. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:34 pm. 





































































Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC1 Activity Number: A15-182964, ACO name & Badge: Attebery, 1929 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On 11/15/2015 at around1036 am, Pima Animal Care Center received a phone call stating 
that 4 pit bulls at Morris Blvd were kept on tie outs without water or shelter. The dogs looked 
sick. On 1212/215 at around 0307 pm, I, Pima Animal Care Officer Attebery, 1929, arrived at 
Morris Blvd for a welfare check on the dogs. As I approached enclosed front yard, I noted a 
grey/white pit bull dog on the south west Side of property with about a 4' nylon leash attached 
to its collar and other end attached to piece of wood stuck in ground.  Bowls were overturned 
next to dog and no water was seen. Where dog was tied was a piece of plywood on top of 
other items. Dog appeared healthy and well fed. I went to the front door and met with Margie 
Amarillas who lives here. Margie claimed to own 4 pit bulls as well as a Pomeranian mix dog. 
I explained purpose of visit and filled out a welfare inspection form for the dogs. There were 3 
Pomeranian mix dogs running loose inside the house. One belonged to Margie and the other 
2 belonged to Margie Amarillas' mother, Margaret Amarillas, who also resides here. 
Pomeranian mix dogs were alert and healthy. Dogs had access to potable water in a small 
bowl in kitchen area. Also inside house was a red/white female pit bull dog inside a wire cage 
carrier with no water. Pit bull dog looked healthy and alert. In enclosed back yard was 1 
white/tan female pit bull. Pit bull had access to smaller fenced area on south east side that 
had a 4th pit bull, red/white male, on a cloth type rope about 4' long attached to its collar and 
other end tied to fence. Both dogs looked alert and healthy. Dogs had a 5 gallon bucket with 
no water and a 3 sided structure with a dirt floor. After discussing welfare violations and 
citations associated with the violations, Margie opted to sign over ownership of 3 of the pit bull 
dogs. The forth pit bull dog, the grey/white dog, in the front yard she decided to keep. Per 
Margie, a friend brought dog over about 2 months ago and she has been caring for the dog. 
Margie admitted to buying food for the animal. Dog was brought into the house and citations 
issued for welfare violations for that dog. Margie was also cited for no license/ no rabies shots 
on her dogs. Margie also signed welfare premise inspection form that listed violations found. 
Form also noted that a Pima Animal Care Officer would return in 7 days to ensure compliance 
with the welfare laws. 

Summary 
Three animals were relinquished to PACC. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements and laws with 
the owner and cited at the scene. One dog was euthanized due to aggression, second dog was 
adopted, third dog is pending an outcome. A recheck was found in compliance. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
reviewed N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
 H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
What happened with the other dog taken to PACC? G. Smith 
 City of Tucson Rep. 
 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC2 Activity Number: A15-184234, ACO name & Badge: D. Hinte, 2068 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 10, 2015 at 1:34PM, Pima Animal Care Center (PACC) dispatch 
received a call from Oro Valley Police Department (OVPD) requesting assistance with 
a dog in immediate distress. On December 10, 2015 at 2:41 PM, I, Officer Hinte 
2068, arrived at Oracle Rd. I met with staff member Russell and OVPD Officer 
Hallberg #V165 who had responded under OVPD case number V15120530. She 
stated that she arrived and found the dog's head stuck in the several inch gap at the 
bottom of the patio wall. She found the dog to be in immediate distress and asked the 
apartment staff to allow access to the unit under exigent circumstances. Staff 
member Russell advised that a maintenance technician named Richard opened the 
unit for Officer Hallberg. Once inside, Officer Hallberg was able to remove the dog's 
head from the gap. She observed no water or shelter on the patio. There was a small 
bowl with minimal food and a second empty small bowl. Officer Hallberg placed the 
dog just inside the sliding glass door to provide some shade. She also filled the empty 
bowl with water. Upon my arrival, I observed the black Pug lying laterally near the 
sliding glass door with the bowl of water next to him. The dog's breathing was 
labored. He made no attempt to move at any point while I was present. He would 
open his eyes on occasion but appeared to be ultimately unresponsive. There 
appeared to be vomit covering his mouth and nose. His was severely emaciated. I 
could clearly see all rib bones, hip bones, and spine through his coat. I performed a 
skin tent test and observed the skin remain elevated for several seconds, indicating 
the dog may be dehydrated to some extent. I observed and photographed the patio 
where the dog was originally located. There was no adequate shelter available for the 
dog. There was one blanket on the floor of the patio. There was an accumulation of at 
least 2-3 days of dried animal waste on the floor. There was a small amount of food, 
approximately 1/4 cup, in a ceramic bowl. Per Officer Hallberg, there was a second 
bowl outside that was empty and dry, however, she filled it with water before my 
arrival. Officer Hallberg provided the owner information as follows: Renee Patrie, 
Clayton Zimmer DOB 04/18/91. Both individuals live in unit #, but Ms. Patrie claimed 
ownership of the dog. Officer Hallberg advised that she had spoken to the owner and 
inquired about the dog's condition. The owner reportedly told her that the dog was left 
on the patio at 6:00 PM the night before and was in good condition. The owner stated 
she was driving back to Tucson from Phoenix at the time of the phone call. Officer 
Hallberg advised her that she had made entry into the apartment and the dog would 
be impounded for its continued well-being. I left a notice advising of impound on the 
kitchen counter of the apartment. I returned to the truck for a carrier to transport the 
dog, named Diesel. When I returned, Officer Hallberg advised that Diesel had a long 
and violent seizure immediately after I exited the apartment. I carefully loaded Diesel 
into the carrier and then into the truck. Once at PACC, I immediately brought the dog 
to the treatment staff. Dr. Carlson and her medical staff drew blood and provided 
fluids, as well as an overall examination. Dr. Carlson described the dog's body 
condition/weight as a 2 out of 9 (5 being ideal). She also advised that results of the 
blood tests showed the dog was moderately malnourished and dehydrated. She 
stated that the dog's emaciated state would have occurred over at least three weeks, 
not one day as the owner had reported to Officer Hallberg. On December 10, 2015 at 
6:30 PM, I, Officer Hinte 2068, met with the owner Renee Patrie at PACC when she 
came to redeem her dog Diesel. I explained the reason for impound and Diesel's 
current condition. I inquired about Diesel's weight, as I found him to be emaciated. 
Ms. Patrie stated that she had purchased an extra-large bag of the "cheapest food 
sold at Walmart." She stated that she noticed Diesel began losing weight three to four 

Summary 
One animal was impounded. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements and laws with the 
owner and cited at PACC. The animal was relinquished to PACC and was later adopted. 
This complaint is closed. 



weeks prior. She advised that four to five days before Diesel was impounded, she 
began feeding a more expensive brand of kibble supplemented with steak, eggs, and 
potatoes which she cooked herself. She stated that she observed a small amount of 
weight gain in that period of 4-5 days. I inquired about Diesel's most recent vet visit. 
She stated that he was seen by a vet approximately one year prior and was found to 
be healthy aside from age-related gum disease. She could not recall which vet he 
was seen by, as she has used several different vets in the past. She did not have the 
records with her at the time. I asked why she didn't seek vet care when Diesel began 
losing weight. She stated that she thought the problem could be resolved by simply 
switching his food to a more nutrient dense brand. I informed her that there was no 
shelter available for Diesel on the patio that I had observed. She stated that she was 
not aware it was required and advised that Diesel "loved to lay in the sun." I also 
informed her that the small bowl that was presumably used for water was observed to 
be empty by the responding OVPD Officer. I explained that there must be water 
available at all times. I issued Ms. Patrie citations in Oro Valley for 1x neglect- non-
nutritive food, 1x neglect - no shelter, 1x neglect - no vet care, and a third-party 
citation for 1x neglect - no water on behalf of OVPD Officer Hallberg #V165. I 
explained each citation as well as her court date, time, and location. She stated that 
she understood, signed, and received her copy. Supervisor Tenkate 1911 and I 
explained that OVPD had requested that the dog be bonded due to the neglect 
violations. We explained that the dog would be held at PACC for ten days and that 
she must petition the Oro Valley courts for an order to show cause hearing. We 
provided her with copies of the OV ordinance pertaining to OSC hearings and a listing 
of the court fees. She stated that she understood. Ms. Patrie asked to observe Diesel 
in his current condition to determine if she should relinquish ownership for his 
continued well-being. I escorted her to the treatment area. I met with PACC vet Dr. 
Carlson. I explained the situation and asked if she may allow the owner to view Diesel 
and explain his current medical condition. Ms. Patrie was allowed to see Diesel. Dr. 
Carlson explained to her that Diesel was currently comatose and experiencing 
frequent seizures. She further explained that he would need to be remain under 24-
hour observation at this time and it was unclear whether or not he would survive. Ms. 
Patrie decided to relinquish ownership of Diesel to PACC. I thoroughly explained the 
release of ownership form and that she would not be able to redeem or adopt Diesel 
once completed. She stated that she understood and signed the form. 
 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
Per accuweather.com Oro Valley experienced temperatures ranging from 46 to 79 degrees Fahrenheit.  Due severity of dog’s condition—please place 
on do not adopt list and suggest a restraining order preventing pet ownership for designated period of time.  Not cited under 18-2 regarding 
licensing/vaccinations—Current?  Not noted on report.  

N. Emptage 

 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
Can we request that she be prevented from owning dogs? H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 



Comments state dog later adopted? Did he go to Pug rescue or was he adopted as special needs dog.  Last comment by Dr. Wilcox states to continue to 
monitor carefully and either go to Pug Rescue needs neutering and dental care once weight gain verified.  This was on 12/14.  What was the outcome? 

G. Smith 

 City of Tucson Rep. 
12/15 WC2 page2 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC3                                                                        Activity Number: A15-184180, ACO name & Badge: D. Hinte, 2068 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 9, 2015 at 2:19 PM, Pima Animal Care Center (PACC) dispatch received 
a call concerning an abandoned female dog and her nine puppies at  W Davis Pl. On 
December 9, 2015 at 2:51 PM, I, Officer Hinte 2068, arrived at W Davis Pl. I met with 
the complainant Virginia Flores. She stated that the residents had been evicted on 
12/1/15. She believes that they had been returning to the property without permission, 
but had not seen anyone since 12/5/15. She entered the home today to find a female 
Rottweiler and her nine puppies. There was no food or water available for the dogs. I 
observed a female Boxer in the front yard. She appeared healthy and of good body 
weight. I could not determine if water or food was available from my vantage point. 
There was a covered front porch with wooden lattice panels on the sides that would 
suffice as shelter. Before I could enter the yard or home to examine the dogs and their 
conditions, an unidentified adult female arrived and began yelling me in Spanish. Ms. 
Flores responded and the exchange quickly became heated. I asked dispatch to 
contact PCSO to assist in keeping the peace. PCSO Deputy Garcia #5794 arrived and 
provided his case number of 151209173. At the same time, the resident and dog 
owner, Jose Bojorquez arrived. Deputy Garcia spoke with all parties to determine the 
situation. Mr. Bojorquez stated that although he was evicted on the 1st, he had an 
agreement with Ms. Flores' son Robert allowing him to leave the dogs on the property 
until he could secure another place for them. He stated that he had been coming onto 
the property and caring for the dogs. He stated that he was at the property the night 
before. He placed the Rottweiler, named Tiffany, and her nine puppies inside to protect 
them from the cold. He stated that he provided food and water at that time. Mrs. Flores 
advised that her son Robert was on his way to clear up the confusion. Officer Garcia 
and I entered the yard with the permission of Mr. and Mrs. Flores. I photographed the 
eviction notices clearly posted on the front of the home. I observed a large bucket of 
water that was mostly full with clean water in the yard. He allowed us inside the house 
where I observed the mom and puppies in the kitchen area. The puppies, only several 
weeks old, were on a large filled comforter type blanket There were two bowls next to 
them, both of which were empty. The puppies appeared healthy and of good body 
weight. I observed Tiffany to be slightly thin, but otherwise healthy. I observed her to be 
actively lactating. There was milk leaking from her teats. Mrs. Flores' son Robert 
arrived on the property. He advised that he allowed Mr. Bojorquez to temporarily keep 
the dogs on the property. He stated that he had been leaving the gate unlocked so that 
they may care for the dogs. Robert also stated that he felt Mr. Bojorquez had been 
given plenty of time and needed to remove his dogs at this time. I met with Mr. 
Bojorquez and advised him of the violation I had observed. I inquired about licenses for 
both adult dogs. He stated that neither dog was licensed or currently vaccinated 
against rabies. I performed a records search and found no record of Mr. Bojorquez or 
anyone else under the address. I asked for his ID and he complied. I issued Mr. 
Bojorquez citations in the County for 2x no license and 1x neglect-no water. I explained 
that I was not issuing no water citations for all nine puppies because I observed Tiffany 
to still be producing a significant amount of milk and the puppies were still actively 
nursing. He stated that he understood, signed, and received his copy. Mr. Bojorquez 
loaded the animals and some of his belongings into his vehicle. He transported the 
animals to his grandmother's house at N Davis Ave. I followed him to the property to 
ensure that all welfare requirements would be met I observed the yard to be fully 
confined by 4-5 foot chain link. There was a large wooden shed, approximately 8x12 
feet, which may be used when they are outside He also brought with him the large five 
gallon bucket and an extra-large airline-type carrier. He advised that he would put 

Summary 
No animals were impounded. Staff reviewed the animal welfare requirements and laws with 
the owner and cited at the scene. This complaint is closed. 



blankets inside the carrier inside of the shed to provide warmth for Tiffany and her 
puppies. I provided him with a law brochure and informed him how to license Tiffany 
and Canela. He stated that he understood. 
 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
reviewed N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
Please follow up condition, vaccinations and licensing H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
What is the time limit to get the dog licenses?  Also Rabies Shots?  Has this been done yet for the Rottie and Boxer? G. Smith 
 City of Tucson Rep. 

12/15 WC3 page2 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC4                                                                       Activity Number: A15-184334, ACO name & Badge: D. Hinte, 2068 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 12, 2015 at 10:37, I, Officer Hinte 2068, was patrolling the 
block of S Clark Ave for a stray aggressive dog. While patrolling the area, I, 
observed a large male boxer on a tie-out at S Clark Ave. The front gate 
was left open. The dog was under the carport and had water within reach. The 
tie-out was approximately 6-8 feet in length and was anchored to the iron bars 
which covered a nearby window. I knocked on the front and side door several 
times. I also loudly announced my presence and the fact that the dog would 
be impounded if no contact was made. A neighbor came outside and advised 
me that the owner was at work. I impounded the dog off the tie-out without 
incident. I posted a notice on the front door advising that tie-outs are prohibited 
and the dog was impounded. I left the tie out on the ground under the carport. 
On December 12, 2015 at 4:15PM, Supervisor Tenkate 1911 met with the dog 
owner Mario Pesqueira, who resides at : . S Clark Ave, when he came to 
redeem his dog at the Pima Animal Care Center. She spoke to Mr. Pesqueira 
about tie outs being illegal and he said his 2.5 year old Boxer Nico is tied out 
every day. He explained his neighbor does not have fencing and that leaves 
part of his yard open. He ties out Nico, for half an hour, when he takes his wife 
to work and comes right back home. Supervisor Tenkate explained the Tie Out 
Law again and he was provided with a copy of the laws, an alternative to tie 
out pamphlet and advised to either fence the yard or use a kennel run. 
Supervisor Tenkate also explained that if Nico is found tied out again the dog 
will be impounded and held for bond. Mr. Pesqueira said Nico is an inside only 
dog and said he will be leaving him inside the home whenever he leaves. Mr. 
Pesqueira provided Supervisor Tenkate with his Arizona driver's license for 
identification. He signed and received a copy of citation #7 4889 A for Neglect 
Tie Out. He is aware of his court date, time and location. 
 

Summary 
One animal was impounded. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements and 
laws with the owner and cited at PACC. The animal was redeemed. This 
complaint is closed. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
No notation regarding vaccination or license? N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
Follow up for enclosed fencing, tie out H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
Any follow up on drive by to see if dog is not being tied outside? G. Smith 
 City of Tucson Rep. 

 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC5                                                                       Activity Number: A15- 184698, ACO name & Badge: C. Young 1908 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 17, 2015 at approximately 13:30 hours Terry Aguilar of: . E 
Speedway Blvd# , arrived at the Pima Animal Care Center with his large Bull 
Mastif named "Lyra". Lyra was severly ill with a visible skin condition resulting in 
almost total hair loss, an open sore on one elbow, skin tags, 
weight loss and the dog was brought in lateral and was unable to stand or 
move. Mr Aguilar requested euthanasia for Lyra. The intake Animal Care Tech, 
Stephanie Scheible, completed an intake questionnaire with Mr Aguilar where he 
admitted that the dog began losing weight six months ago but they could not afford 
a Vet and at 03:00 this morning the dog vomited, laid down and couldn't get up so 
they decided to have the dog euthanized. Mr. Aguilar also admitted to the Animal 
Care Tech that the dog was last seen by a Veterinarian a year ago for skin issues. 
Mr. Aguilar's dog was examined by Doctor J. Wilcox and euthanized. Due to the 
dog's condition, Dr. Wilcox requested that criminal citations be issued to Mr. 
Aguilar for Animal Cruelty and Neglect. Officer D. Windauer #1984 was contacted 
and asked to come and observe the dog's condition. Officer Windauer took 
pictures of the deceased animal and noted the skin tags, swelling on rear legs, hair 
loss, poor condition of teeth and an open sore on the dog's front elbow that was 
worn thru the skin. Officer Windauer then spoke with Supervisor D. Ten kate 
#1911 and it was agreed that citations should be issued to the dog owner for 
failure to provide Veterinarian care. At approximately 15:55 hours on December 
17, 2015 I, Officer C. Young #1908, arrived at ' E Speedway Blvd. to meet with 
Terry Aguilar. Mr Aguilar was not home but I was able to meet with Mrs Aguliar. I 
explained the reason for my visit and Mrs. Aguilar was very cooperative and 
provided her Arizona Drivers License for identification. I asked when the last time 
Lyra was taken to a Vet Clinic and she said she could not remember exactly but 
she does have records. I asked to see them, and she showed me an invoice from 
September 2013 showing that Lyra was treated for a skin condition. She was given 
a shampoo and medication. Mrs Aguilar said she was sure that Lyra was seen by 
a Veterinarian more recently but did not have proof. I issued citations as requested 
by Dr Wilcox. Mrs Aguilar signed the citation and accepted her copy. I then 
provided her with her court date and time. C. Young 1908 

Summary 
One sick animal was relinquished to PACC for euthanasia. After a medical examination 
was conducted a welfare case was initiated for failure to provide vet care by the 
Enforcement Supervisor and PACC Veterinarian. At a later date staff reviewed animal 
welfare requirements and laws with the owner and cited the owner at their residence. The 
animal was euthanized due to the severity of the illness. This complaint is closed. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
Again, no notation if the animal was current on vaccinations or licensed.  Did anyone check with veterinarian regarding last visit? N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
Request be prevented from owning dogs H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
Dog owner should be tagged in computer to not be permitted to adopt from PACC again, due to neglectful care of this poor dog. Also do we share the names 
of neglectful owners with Humane Society as well as with our Rescue Partners.? 

G. Smith 

 City of Tucson Rep. 



 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC6 Activity Number: A15-184807, ACO name & Badge: D. Hinte, 2068 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 19, 2015 at 4:36 PM, Pima Animal Care Center (PACC) dispatch 
received a call for assistance from Marana Police Department (MPD) regarding 
an aggressive dog at large. On December 19, 2015 at 5:31 PM, I, Officer Hinte 2068, 
arrived at N Gadwall Dr. I met with Marana PO Officer Samorano #443 who provided 
his case number of 1512-0693. I observed a black and white Pitbull in the yard at  . 
Officer Samorano stated that the dog had jumped into the yard from its own yard at 
12260. He also stated that the complainant/resident of : had advised it was not the 
first time one of the neighbor's dogs had jumped into their yard. I entered the yard to 
impound the dog. As I approached the dog, it ran towards the south side of the yard. 
The dog then turned around, ran northbound past me, and jumped the 5 foot wall 
back into its own yard. There were three other large Pitbulls in the backyard of  , one 
blue/white and two white/brown. While looking into the backyard at 1 I from the yard 
of , I observed the dogs jump up and get their head over the shorter 4 foot section of 
the fence near the gate. I could not see water or adequate shelter from my vantage 
point. I met with the complainant David Wood. He stated that this was the third time 
one of the neighbor's dogs had jumped the fence into his backyard. The first incident 
occurred approximately 1.5 months prior. The blue and white Pitbull jumped the fence 
into their yard. They were able to corral their dogs inside almost immediately without 
incident. An adult female came to retrieve the dog and asked if she had "done 
anything" when she jumped the fence. The second incident occurred on Saturday, 
11/28/15. Mr. Wood's children were home alone playing in the backyard when one of 
the dog's jumped the fence. They believe it was also the blue and white dog on this 
occasion. Marana PD was called on this day regarding the leash law violation. Officer 
Samorano provided this case number for me: 1512-0016. I contacted Supervisor 
Tenkate 1911. I advised her of my observations as well as the previously reported 
violations of leash law. I was instructed to request assistance from a second officer 
and impound all four dogs for inadequate confinement. I asked dispatch for 
assistance and was informed via radio that a second officer was en route. While 
waiting for assistance, I was able to impound two of the friendly dogs without incident. 
The female white/brown and the female blue/white came to the gate and jumped up, 
placing their front paws near the top of the gate. I leashed them one at a time over 
the gate and walked them out of the yard. They were placed in the truck kennel 
without incident. There were two dogs remaining in the yard, the black/white dog that 
was initially at large, and a second white/brown dog. I waited for assistance to 
impound due to their ability to jump the fence. Officer Windauer 1984 arrived to 
assist. We entered the yard together. Marana PO stood watch at the gate in an 
attempt to prevent the dogs from jumping out of the yard. We tried to call to the dogs 
and lure them with food, but were unsuccessful. As we approached the dogs on the 
north side of the yard, they both ran to the corner. The white/brown dog tried to jump 
the fence but Officer Wlndauer was able to capture it using the snare pole. While 
transporting the dog to the truck from the backyard, the dog bit Officer Windauer's 
snare pole repeatedly. Once in the truck kennel, Officer Windauer observed blood 
originating from the dog's mouth. While she was taking the dog to the truck, I stayed 
in the yard with the remaining black/white dog. I backed away to prevent the dog from 
feeling pressured to jump the fence. I photographed the yard to document the lack of 
water and adequate shelter as well as the presence of excessive animal waste. 
The dog ran around to the south side of the yard as I heard the MPD Officer yell that 
he had jumped the fence. I exited the yard and got into my truck to follow the dog. I 
drove around the block but did not observe the dog. I returned to the address where 

Summary 
No animals were impounded. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements 
and laws with the owner and cited at the scene. A recheck was found in 
compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 MPD advised me that the dog had jumped into the backyard at W Coppertail. At this 
same time, the dog owner returned home. Officer Windauer and I responded to · W 
Coppertail. Officer Windauer observed the dog in question hiding underneath a 
trampoline. Both gates to the yard were padlocked and the resident was not nswering 
the door. After several minutes, the owner was able to call the dog to jump back over 
the fence to him. I asked the man to place the dog securely inside the home so that 
we may discuss the night's events. During this time, I contacted Supervisor Ten kate 
to discuss whether the dogs would be held for inadequate confinement or released to 
the owner. She stated that the dogs may be released to the owner under the 
condition that they are kept inside until the confinement is secure and only allowed 
outside under direct supervision. I met with Michael Beach, who identified himself as 
the co-owner of all four dogs, along with his fiancee Danielle Cooper. He advised that 
Ms. Cooper would not be home for at least one hour. I informed him of the reason I 
had responded to his address. I informed him that I had observed the black and white 
dog, now identified as Syo Max, jump the fence several times. Mr. Beach stated that 
he was aware of the issue and had been trying to get to a home improvement store to 
purchase the materials necessary to improve the fence line. He stated that he could 
not keep the dogs inside the home in the mean time because they would "pee all over 
his floor all day." I informed Mr. Beach that his other three dogs had been impounded 
due to the inadequate confinement I also informed him that I did not observe any 
water or shelter available for the dogs. He stated that he has water inside the home 
for the dogs. I informed him that water must be available at all times. He stated that 
he leaves the sliding glass door open so that they may go in and out as they please. I 
informed him that the door was closed the entire time that I was present He stated 
that the dogs have the ability to open and close the sliding glass door, so they could 
have gone inside the home for water or shelter at any time. I informed him that I did 
not observe the door to be open at any time or the dogs attempt to open the door. I 
inquired about the names, ages, vaccinations, and licenses for all dogs. He stated 
that the blue/white is 7 YO Abbey, the white with small brown patches is 8 month old 
Elsa, and the white with larger brown patches is 8 month old Meika. He stated that all 
four dogs are current on rabies vaccinations, but he was unaware that the dogs had 
to be licensed. Mr. Beach went inside the home to locate the vaccination records. He 
came back with two booklets for Meika and Elsa showing that they received DHPP 
vaccinations. I could not find any indication of a rabies vaccination in the booklet and 
informed Mr. Beach of this fact. He stated that he had the records, but would need 
more time to locate them. I explained to Mr. Beach that the dogs will be released to 
him only if he is able to keep them confined somewhere other than the yard until it is 
secure. He stated that he could keep them inside until he finds a solution for the 
confinement. I informed him that I had observed Max easily jump the 5 foot wall and 
that raising the fence line may or may not solve the problem. We discussed covered 
kennel runs, which he seemed open to trying. I emphasized that the dogs may not be 
in the yard without direct supervision until the repairs are made. He stated that he 
understood. Officer Windauer and I explained that Meika had bitten the snare pole 
repeatedly while being impounded. We allowed him to remove her from the truck 
kennel and carry her inside the home while I completed the citations. Mr. Beach 
inquired about who would pay for veterinary care, if needed. I informed him that he 
was responsible as the dog owner. I performed a records search and found no dogs 
licensed to Mr. Beach or Ms. Cooper. Before completing the citations, I asked Mr. 
Beach about Meika's condition. He stated that she was "pretty bad." I asked if I could 
observe her to determine whether or not she would need vet care and how soon she 
may need it. He allowed me inside the home to observe Meika. I observed the left 
side of her mouth to be swollen as if she had a "fat lip." I could not take a photograph 



as she was fearful and would not come close to me and/or stay still. She was not 
actively bleeding at that time, though there was blood on her fur and the sidewalk 
where she was impounded. We discussed that she may need to see a vet to prevent 
infection. At this time, Mr. Beach's fiancée Danielle Cooper entered the home. She 
began to examine Meika as I asked Mr. Beach to step outside with me to complete 
the citations. We returned to the front yard with Officer Windauer and MPD Officer 
Samorano. Officer Samorano informed me that he had already issued a citation for 
the leash law violation we had observed. I issued Mr. Beach citations in Marana for 
4x neglect - no water, 4x no license, and 4x no rabies vaccination. I explained his 
court date, time, and location. He stated that he understood, signed, and received his 
copy. Ms. Cooper came outside appearing very upset She asked who would pay for 
Meika's vet care. I informed her that she and Mr. Beach are responsible for any vet 
costs as the owners. She became more irate, stating that we shouldn't be "ripping 
[her] dog's face open." I informed her that no such thing happened. I explained that 
the dog had bitten the snare pole during impoundment. She began to walk back 
towards the house, but yelled back that she "comes from money" and would be 
getting a lawyer. I issued Mr. Beach a premise inspection for vet care on Meika by 
12121/15. I also noted on the premise inspection that water, shelter, confinement and 
waste were unsatisfactory. I explained the improvements that must be made in each 
area. He stated that he understood, signed, and received his copy. I returned the 
remaining two dog's to Mr. Beach's custody. 
 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
Dogs had ability to open and CLOSE sliding glass door? . Mr. Beach inquired about who would pay for veterinary care, if needed. I informed him that he 
was responsible as the dog owner.  Recheck? 

N. Emptage 

 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
How does dangerous dog affect this/ Does not seem safe to leave these dogs there H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
Do we know outcome of court case, have the dogs received Rabies Vaccines, or does the recheck and found in compliance mean that all requirements are 
fulfilled, shots, licensing and yard made acceptable to prevent dogs from jumping the fence.? 

G. Smith 

 City of Tucson Rep. 
12/15 WC6 page3 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC7                                                                       Activity Number: A15-184744, ACO name & Badge: s. Adkins 1961 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On 12-18-15 at approximately 16:49 hours Officer Glanz #2051 and 
Officer Young #1908 arrived at, E 4th Street regarding a neglect 
complaint. Officer Glanz and Officer Young observed a male black and 
brown German Shep in an enclosed yard to the side of the home. The 
dog appeared to be in good weight and there were empty dog food 
cans outside the yard. Officer Glanz knocked on the front door and 
rang the doorbell, but didn't receive an answer. Officer Young #1908 
entered the yard and observed that the dog had no water or shelter. 
Officer Young offered the dog water which he readily drank. The dog 
was impounded without incident for its continued wellbeing. Officer 
Glanz posted a notice on the front door. On 12-20-15 at 14:40 I, Officer 
Adkins 1961 met with dog owner Yulong Jiang at Pima County Animal 
Care Center when he came to redeem his dog. I explained why the dog 
was impounded and then issued citation 74911 A-B for neglect no 
water and no shelter on Officer Glanz photos and memo. Mr Jiang 
signed and received a copy of the citation with the court date, time, and 
location. Mr Jiang stated to me he would be keeping his dog inside his 
home and only letting the dog out into the yard when he is home to go 
to the bathroom. Mr Jiang redeemed his dog.  

Summary 
One dog was impounded. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements 
and laws with the owner and cited at PACC. The animal was redeemed. 
This complaint is closed. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
Almost 2 full days before dog owner responded to impound. N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
 H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
 G. Smith 
 City of Tucson Rep. 

 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC8                                                                       Activity Number: A15-184937, ACO name & Badge: K. Walton  1925 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 22nd 2015 at 1319 hours, I, Officer K. Walton #1925, 
arrived at the residence of welfare case. S. Amigo regarding a 
The case was regsrding a dog with sores on its body and foul smelling. 
I met with the owner Abel Rivas Villalobos, and a male which I believe 
was his son. They showed me the dog, which appeared to be a white 
Boxer mix with black spots. The dog had a growth on his nose, a large 
red swollen mass with green discharge and some blood on the 
stomach pelvic area and an open wound on front left leg. In my 
experience, it appeared to me the growths might be possible cancer. 
He advised me 2 stray dogs got into his yard and attacked his dog, and 
be thought the injuries were from tbat and did not get vet care due to 
being unemployed. He checked into having the dog euthanized, but 
places cbarged to much. The dog bad shelter, shade, water, and was 
in good weight for its age of 9+ years. He bas bad tbe dog since it was 
a puppy, and believes tbe last time the dog was seen at a vets office 
was when it younger to get shots. I advised him he could sign the dog 
over to Pima animal care center with fees waived and the dog would be 
evaluated, but he would be cited for neglect vet care Per Supervisor 
Tenkate. The son translated for me just in case be did not understand 
things I said. He signed the dog over and received his citation. His 
identificstion stated Villalobos was his last name, but be stated Rivas 
was his last name. 1925 Summary 

One dog was relinquished to PACC. Staff reviewed animal welfare 
requirements and laws with the owner cited at the scene. The animal was 
euthanized due to severity of the illness. This complaint is closed. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
No citations for failure to vaccinate and license?   N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
 H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
Do we know when court date is..this man let his dog suffer when he could have brought him to PACC.  These injuries were not from a dog attack a couple 
weeks ago… 

G. Smith 

 City of Tucson Rep. 
 



Animal Welfare Case – Advisory Committee Comment Sheet – 12/15 WC9                                                                      Activity Number: A15-185124, ACO name & Badge C. Martinez 2067 
 

Report Snapshot Officer’s Case Report 

 

On December 26, 2015 at approximately 1200 hours I, Officer Martinez 
#2067 arrived at · W. Guy St in regards to a complaint of a dog on a tie 
out. Upon my arrival I knocked on the door of the trailer and was met by 
Adelita Maciel. I informed her of the complaint and why I was there. She 
admitted to having her Dog, Rajah, on a tie out because he is a jumper 
and had been getting out. I asked to see him and she walked me to her 
back yard. I saw a large Brindle dog tied to a tree with a short chain that 
was approximately 2-3 feet. There was a black container upside down, and 
a dog bed nearby. The black container wasn't in reach of the dog. I asked 
about water and Ms. Maciel stated the black container was for his water 
but that he plays with the bowl and must have tipped it over. I asked when 
the last time they had checked on the dog was and she stated it had been 
last night. I could hear another dog barking and asked if that was another 
dog on a tie out and she showed me over to where the other dog was 
being housed. I saw a black Lab in a confined area with shade, shelter and 
water. I advised her that tie outs are illegal and then asked about rabies 
vaccine and license status. She stated she thought both her dogs were 
current. I checked Chameleon but found her black lab had an expired 
license and Rajah was not listed. While I was checking license status she 
and her son put Rajah in the confined area with the other dog. Rajah went 
straight for the water and began to drink for a couple minutes. I gave some 
recommendations such as looking into a no jump harness. I asked Ms. 
Maciel for her ID as I was going to have to issue citations. I issued 
citations to Ms. Maciel into county court for neglect- tie out, neglectno 
water for Rajah and no license for both dogs. Citations were discussed, 
signed and she received her copy along with her ID. 

Summary 
No animals were impounded. Staff reviewed animal welfare requirements 
and laws with the owner and cited at the scene. This complaint is closed. 

Committee Member Comments/ Request for Information Member 
 T. Barrick 
License # listed as N/A—why? N. Emptage 
 P. Hubbard 
 P. Jacobs 
 S. Kaluzniacki 
 D. Marshall 
Please follow up vaccinations, license, and tie outs H. Mendelsohn 
 J. Neumann 

 E. O'Donnell 
 J. Schwerin 
Did owners follow up with licensing and rabies shots? G. Smith 
 City of Tucson Rep. 

 



























































1 of 4 
Animal Control – Advisory Committee 

ORDINANCE 2015- ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF PIMA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, RELATING TO ANIMALS; AMENDING PIMA 
COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 6.04.100 TO MODIFY THE MEMBERSHIP 
OF THE ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND ITS PURPOSE 

 
 
SECTION 1:  Section 6.04.100 of the Pima County Code is amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 6.04 
 

ANIMAL CONTROL REGULATIONS 
. . .  

 
6.04.100 - Advisory committee—Established—Powers and duties.  

A. An advisory committee known as the Pima County animal care advisory committee 
shall be established by the board of supervisors. The purpose of this committee 
shall be to:  

1. Serve in an advisory capacity to the board of supervisors and to the manager of 
the Pima Animal Care Center; and  

2. Review and evaluate the operations of the center in order to make 
recommendations in writing to the board for the formulation of guidelines to 
assure that:  

a. The center's operations are conducted in the best interest of the public 
health and safety; and  

b. The center keeps pace with the most modern practices and procedures of 
animal care and welfare; and  

3. Review complaints from the public concerning policies of the center and make 
recommendations for resolving them to the proper authority.  

B. The membership of this committee shall consist of a representative from the 
Southern Arizona Veterinary Medical Association, the Society for the Prevention of 
Cruelty to Animals of Arizona, Inc., the Humane Society of Southern Arizona, the 
Tucson Kennel Club, the Animal Welfare Coalition, a public educator, a member of 
the Pima County board of health, Pima Paws for Life, the People for Animals in the 
Prevention of Cruelty and Neglect, Inc., a resident of Pima County who needs and 
uses the assistance of a certified service dog as representative of the disabled 
community, the city of Tucson, and a registered volunteer with the Pima Animal 
Care Center. The manager of the center shall serve as an ex officio member.  

C. Appointment of members shall be the responsibility of each of the organizations and 
governments represented on this committee. The registered volunteer shall be 
selected by the members of the Pima Animal Care Center advisory committee from 
a list of no fewer than three volunteers recommended by the manager of the center. 
Terms shall be four years for all members.  

D. Responsibilities of each member shall be to: 



2 of 4 
Animal Control – Advisory Committee 

1. Attend all meetings; and 

2. Inform the individual organizations and governments of formal actions taken by 
the committee; and  

3. Represent the individual organizations, governments and the interest of the 
general public in advising the board of supervisors on policy decisions 
regarding the Pima Animal Care Center; and  

4. Reports emanating from the committee shall be adopted by majority vote of the 
committee and submitted to the county board of supervisors; and  

5. A copy of the minutes of each meeting shall be submitted to the governing body 
of each political jurisdiction that the center serves after adoption by the 
committee; and  

6. Establish by-laws that govern procedures for meetings and official 
correspondence; and  

7. Select members of the committee to serve as chairperson and vice chairperson 
for a term of two years. A member holding any office may not succeed himself 
or herself in office. Selection of chairperson and vice chairperson shall be held 
thirty days from the effective date of the ordinance.  

A. An Advisory Committee known as the Pima County Animal Care Advisory 
Committee is established by the Board of Supervisors.  The purpose of this committee is 
to: 

1. Serve in an advisory capacity to the Board of Supervisors and to the 
manager of the Pima Animal Care Center;  

2. Review and evaluate the general operations of the Center in order to make 
recommendations to the Board of Supervisors for the purpose of assuring 
that: 

a. The Center’s operations promote the public health and safety; and 

b. The Center safeguards the health and well-being of dogs and cats 
and is consistent with best practices and procedures of animal 
control and welfare; and  

c. Establish by-laws that govern procedures for meetings and official 
correspondence. 

Membership of this committee consists of the following: 

B. Community Organizations and Partners 

1. Each of the following organizations or associations appoints one 
committee member:   the Southern Arizona Veterinary Medical 
Association; Pima Animal Care Center Partners, which is comprised of 
one representative of each of the jurisdictions that have an 
intergovernmental agreement with Pima County; Friends of Pima Animal 
Care Center, the nonprofit fundraising arm of PACC; and the registered 
volunteers with Pima Animal Care Center.   



3 of 4 
Animal Control – Advisory Committee 

2. The term of appointment for committee members appointed pursuant to 
B.1. begins July 1, 2016. 

3. At the first Advisory Committee meeting following July 1, 2016, the 
committee members appointed by organizational partners as delineated in 
B.1. shall, through random selection, identify two members to serve four 
year terms through June 30, 2020 and two members to serve two year 
terms through June 30, 2018. 

C. Board of Supervisors Appointees 

1. Each member of the Board of Supervisors of Pima County appoints one 
individual to serve as a member of the Advisory Committee.    

2. The term of appointment for committee members appointed pursuant to 
C.1. begins July 1, 2016.   

a. At the first Advisory Committee meeting following July 1, 2016, 
the committee members appointed by members of the Board of 
Supervisors shall, through random selection, identify three 
members to serve four year terms through June 30, 2020 and two 
members to serve two year terms through June 30, 2018. 

b. Each subsequent appointment, other than for the purposes of filling 
the remainder of an unexpired term, is for four years. 

D. County Administrator Appointees 

 1. The County Administrator appoints one committee member. 

a. The initial committee member appointed by the County 
Administrator pursuant to D.1.  serves a two year term  beginning 
July 1, 2016    

b. Each subsequent appointment, other than for the purposes of filling 
the remainder of an unexpired term, is for four years. 

2. The County Administrator appoints one staff representative to 
serve as a committee member.   

a. The initial staff representative appointed by the County 
Administrator pursuant to D. 2.  serves a two year term beginning 
July 1, 2016.   

b. Each subsequent appointment, other than for the purposes of filling 
the remainder of an unexpired term, is for four years. 

E. Existing members. 

1. The terms of any committee members serving at the time this Section is 
adopted with terms scheduled to expire in 2016 or 2017 expire June 30, 
2016. 

2. The terms of any committee members serving at the time this Section is 
adopted with terms scheduled to expire in 2018 or 2019 expire June 30, 
2018. 



4 of 4 
Animal Control – Advisory Committee 

   

F. Responsibilities of each committee member:  

 1. Attend all meetings; and 

2. Be informed about the Pima Animal Care Center’s mission, services, 
policies and programs. 

 
 
SECTION 2.  This Ordinance is effective 30 days after the date of adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors, Pima County, Arizona, this 
____________day of________, 2015. 

 
 
______________________________ _______________ 
Chair, Board of Supervisors     Date 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney 







Complaints and Commendations for the Month of December 2015 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12-7-15 E-mail 
Commendation 
Thank you e-mail to staff and volunteers for adoption experience; family adopted two dogs.  

12-11-15 Letter from Congresswoman Martha McSally 
Commendation 
Thank you letter for rescuing and returning a dog to owner in Idaho. 






	1 PCACAC Agenda 01-21-16
	NOTICE
	PUBLIC MEETING OF THE
	PIMA COUNTY ANIMAL CARE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

	PCACAC Minutes 12-17-15 Draft
	Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee

	Welfare Cases 12-15
	Welfare Comments ALL 12-15
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC1 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC2 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC3 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC4 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC5 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC6 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC7 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC8 FULL
	Welfare Comment Sheet 12-15 WC9 FULL

	DD Cases 12-15
	DD Report 12-15
	DD Cases 12-15

	Holds 1-14-16
	PACCAC Ordinance (00307560-3)
	Donations 12-15 + YTD
	Complaints Summary 12-15
	Commendations 12-15



